
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the 
use of social media by anyone attending.  This does not 
apply to any part of the meeting that is held in private 
session.

Please ask for:
Gurdip Paddan

12 March 2019

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE to be held on Thursday 21 March 2019 at 7.30 pm in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS 

To note any substitution of Committee members made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 19-22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 January 2019 
(previously circulated).

4.  ACTIONS UPDATE (Pages 5 - 6)

Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
which lists the actions from previous meetings and their current status.

Public Document Pack



5.  NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 13 

6.  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this agenda.

7.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS 

Up to fifteen minutes will be available for questions from members of the public on 
issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions.

8.  RISK MANAGEMENT (Pages 7 - 22)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
bringing to Members’ attention the current strategic and top operational risks facing 
the Council, as determined by the Corporate Management Team and Heads of 
Service.  These risks had been reviewed at the performance clinic in February 
2019 and reflected the assessments in place for quarter one of 2019/20.

9.  SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE (SIAS) INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS 
REPORT (Pages 23 - 32)

Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service asking Members to note the Internal 
Audit Progress Report and amendments to the Audit Plan for 2018/19.

10.  SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE (SIAS) 2019/20 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
REPORT (Pages 33 - 50)

Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service on approval of the proposed Annual 
Audit Plan for 2019/20.

11.  AUDIT PLANNING REPORT - YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 (Pages 51 - 88)

Report of Ernest & Young LLP providing the Council’s Audit planning report for the 
year ended 31 March 2019.

12.  CERTIFICATION  OF  CLAIMS  AND  RETURNS  ANNUAL  REPORT  2017-18 
(Pages 89 - 102)

Report of Ernest & Young LLP summarising the results of their work on the 
Council’s 2017-18 claims and returns.

13.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 



14.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Committee is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A) (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 15 (if any) on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) and Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
said Act as amended.

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information.

PART II

15.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIR 

Circulation: Councillors G.Michaelides (Chairman)
S.Markiewicz (Vice-Chairman)
J.Boulton
J.Broach

S.Roberts
S.Wrenn
P.Zukowskyj

D.Bell (Executive Member, Resources)

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Gurdip 
Paddan, Governance Service on 01707357349 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Main author: Gurdip Paddan
Executive Member: Councillor D.Bell
No Specific Ward 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 21 MARCH 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

ACTIONS STATUS REPORT

1 Executive Summary

1.1 In order to ensure that actions identified at meetings are completed, this report 
lists the actions from the meeting on 1 October 2018, those responsible for 
completing each action and its current status.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 That Members note the status of actions which were identified at the meeting 
of this Committee on 17January 2019.

Minute Action Responsible
Status/
Date Completed

There is nothing further to report at this meeting.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Main author: Andy Cremer
Executive Member: Fiona Thomson

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 21ST MARCH 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE)

RISK MANAGEMENT

1 Executive Summary

1.1 This report brings to Members’ attention the current strategic and top operational risks 
facing the Council, as determined by Corporate Management Team and Heads of Service.  
These risks have been reviewed at the performance clinic in February 2019 and reflect the 
assessments in place for the quarter January 2019 to April 2019.  

2 Recommendation

2.1 Members  are asked to:

 Note the attached current Strategic Risk Register and top operational risks, and 
particularly:

 Note comments in respect of each risk where shown.

3 Explanation

3.1 Appendix A shows the strategic risk register.  This has been the subject of a recent full 
review at a workshop facilitated by our insurers, Zurich, and Members will see some 
significant changes to this  Each strategic risk has ownership by a Corporate Director and 
an Executive Member.  Appendix B shows the top operational risks scoring greater than 
50.  The risk scoring table is as follows and shows the new impact2 x likelihood 
methodology:

3.2 A risk management training session was run for Members in February 2019, and this was 
attended by nine Members.

Likelihood

Imp
act

25

16

9

4

1

50

32

18

8

2

60

48

27

12

3

100

64

36

16

4

125

80

45

20

5

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



4 Legal Implications

4.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “[a] relevant authority must ensure 
that it has a sound system of internal control which [among other matters] includes 
effective arrangements for the management of risk.”

5 Financial Implications

5.1 There are none directly arising from this report, though of course any risk event may have 
its own financial consequences.

6 Risk Management Implications

6.1 Failing to maintain adequate and effective arrangements for the management of risk may 
lead to risk events not being foreseen, an inadequate response to a risk event occurring 
and a failure to exploit opportunities.

7 Security and Terrorism Implications

7.1 None.

8 Procurement Implications

8.1 None.

9 Climate Change Implications

9.1 None.

10 Human Resources Implication(s)

10.1 None.

11 Health and Wellbeing Implications

10.1 None.

12 Communication and Engagement Implications

12.1 None.

13 Link to Corporate Priorities

13.1 The subject of this report supports all council priorities in that the effective management of 
risk is essential to the achievement of objectives.

14 Equality and Diversity

14.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with the 
proposals that are set out in this report as it relates purely to monitoring information.

Name of Author: Andy Cremer
Title:  Risk and Resilience Manager
Date: February 2019

Appendices:
Appendix A – Strategic Risk Register, Appendix B – Top Operational Risks 

Page 8



Risk Report

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Community Consultation and
Engagement Description: Failure to properly
consult customers in line with legislative and
regulatory requirements (as appropriate to
relevant service areas). Failure to involve
communities when planning services.
Consequences: Intervention by regulatory
bodies, Legal - challenge, Reputational
damage, Additional costs, Inadequate service
shaping

Simone
Chinman
Russell

Alliance Strategy

Borough Panel

Corporate Strategy - Customer Services
Strategy

Corporate Strategy - Tenant Involvement
Strategy (Housing)

Customer Service Strategy - Customer
Insight Framework

Policy and Procedure Framework

Regular consultation exercises carried out by
services

Tenants’ Panel

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: As part of the Customer Service
Strategy delivery plan, the working group
'Customer Engagement' has developed an
engagement framework.

Comment Last Updated:
15/01/2019 08:08:33

P
age 9



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Management of Council Owned
Housing Property Assets Description: Failure
to provide and maintain council housing
property assets and services. Taking
opportunities to invest in assets.
Consequences: Increased homelessness,
Community impact, Economic development,
Unsafe assets, H&S - Injuries and ill health,
Intervention by regulatory bodies, Customer
dissatisfaction, Reputational damage,
Additional costs, Financial Implications

Simone
Chinman
Russell

Asbestos Management

Electrical safety

Finance - HRA Business Plan

Fire Risk Assessment

H&S - organisation & responsibilities

Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy

HRA Asset Strategy/Business Plan

LGSR compliance

Planned works delivery I

Policy and Procedure Framework

Property Services (Housing) - Disrepair

Water Hygiene

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Work is continuing to develop the
Housing and Homelessness Strategy The
Older Persons' Housing Strategy is in the
implementation stage and this includes the re-
development of Minster House, Sheltered
Housing Scheme. The HRA Business Plan is
in development, to be launched in the Spring
of 2019.

Comment Last Updated:
15/01/2019 08:10:03

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Safeguarding Description: Failure to
meet obligations in respect of children and
adults at risk from abuse. Consequences:
Undetected Abuse, Legal - Litigation,
Reputational damage, Risk to residents
wellbeing

Simone
Chinman
Russell

Mandatory safeguarding training programme

Reporting pathways communicated and
updated

Safeguarding Action Plan

Safeguarding Policies

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Progress continues in
implementing Safeguarding Action Plan.
Positive feedback from recent audit visit by
Chair of Herts Safeguarding Adults Board.

Comment Last Updated:
15/01/2019 08:28:53

P
age 10



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Change Management Description:
A new oneteam culture and set of behaviours
have been rolled out across the council and
are now being embedded to support our
modernisation and improvement journey. This
risk addresses the consequences of any
failure to robustly manage change.
Consequences: Inadequate service shaping,
Additional costs, Reputational damage

Rob Bridge Appraisal and one to one process

Chief Executive Briefings

Close Working Relationship with HR

Communication

HR - Employee Forum

HR - Meetings with Trades Unions

HR - Reporting to ROSC

LGA Membership

Peer Challenge

Staff

Use of consultants

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

COMMENT: NONE

COMMENT LAST
UPDATED: NONE

P
age 11



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Staff/Workforce Description: Failure
to recruit or retain staff with key skills. Lack of
resources due to high levels of sickness,
turnover or industrial action. Failure to develop
and train existing staff. Breach of legislation or
failure to follow our HR policies.
Consequences: Legal - Litigation, HR - High
Staff Turnover, Low morale, Additional costs

Nick Long Appraisal and one to one process

Apprenticeship Scheme

Corporate Governance - Management
Assurance Statement

Departmental Training Plans

Flexible Working

Green Travel Plan

Health and Wellbeing Programme

HR - Agency Staff Policy

HR - Disciplinary and Grievance Policy

HR - Employee Forum

HR - Meetings with Trades Unions

HR - Recruitment and Selection Process

HR - Reporting to ROSC

HR - Sickness Absence Policy

HR - Workforce Development Strategy

HR Policies (overall framework)

Training and Awareness of HR Staff

Current Score
48

Indicator
3

Probability

3
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Recruitment remains a challenge
in certain areas, with Heads of Service
reporting challenges particularly in relation to
specialist skilled and professional staff. This
is something which is common across the
local government sector. We are looking at
reviewing our approaches to advertising,
recruitment methods and job
design/evaluation, however the risk remains.

Comment Last Updated:
07/01/2019 15:05:14

P
age 12



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Prevent Description: Not properly
implementing the government’s ‘Prevent’
agenda to address the risks of radicalisation.
Consequences: Reputational damage,
Undetected Abuse, Prevent Delayed referral to
Channel, Prevent - lack of staff awareness,
Poor partnership working

Nick Long Prevent - Channel

Prevent - Lease and Hire Agreements

Prevent - Nominated Lead Officer for Prevent

Prevent - Security and Terrorism implications
in report template

Prevent - Venue Guidance

Prevent - WRAP workshops

Prevent matters discussed at Safeguarding
meetings.

Representation at County Prevent Board

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: WRAP Sessions continue. In
December 2018 we held sessions around the
underpining ideologies behind Islamist and
far right extremism delivered by two experts in
the field. These were attended by around fifty
staff and Members.

Comment Last Updated:
03/01/2019 14:36:14

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Corporate Resilience Description:
Failure to meet the requirements of the Civil
Contingencies Act 2004, including the
material failure or inadequacy of plans
Failure to respond appropriately to a civil
emergency or business continuity incident,
including the duty of care to the community.
Consequences: Community impact,
Economic development, Unsafe assets,
Customer dissatisfaction, Reputational
damage, Poor partnership working,
Intervention by regulatory bodies

Nick Long Resilience - Business Continuity Management
Process

Resilience - Care of People Plan

Resilience - Crisis Support Team

Resilience - Extended Floodline

Resilience - Local Resilience Forum

Resilience - Resilient Telecommunications

Resilience - Training and Exercising

Resilience - WHBC Emergency Plan

Current Score
25

Indicator
3

Probability

1
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: An exercise for CMT is planned for
February and we are also running a Member
training session. WHBC is also contributing to
an HCC scrutiny process around engagement
with the Local Resilience Forum.

Comment Last Updated:
03/01/2019 14:38:01

P
age 13



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Health and Safety Description:
Failure to maintain an adequate and effective
safety management system within the Council,
including structures, processes, control
measures and allocations of responsibilities
and ensuring competence of employees,
contractors and service providers.
Consequences: H&S - Injuries and ill health,
Lost productivity, Sickness absence, Legal -
Litigation, Intervention by regulatory bodies,
Reputational damage

Nick Long H&S - Collective Responsibility of Executive
Board

H&S - Corporate Health and Safety Policy

H&S - Inspection and auditing

H&S - Map of the extent of the undertaking

H&S - Periodic Inspection of plant and
equipment.

H&S - Risk and Resilience Team

H&S - Risk Assessment Policy

H&S - Safety Director Role

H&S - Staff Induction and Training

Current Score
16

Indicator
2

Probability

1
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Policy reviews continue, as does
the programme of audits and inspections.

Comment Last Updated:
03/01/2019 14:40:09

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Local Plan Description: Risk that
Local Plan will be found unsound. Inspector
has asked Council to find at least 4,000 more
homes in plan period, by carrying out new
Green Belt Study. New NPPF likely to introduce
penalties if councils do not meet housing
needs. Consequences: Economic
development, Financial - affects on receipts,
Economic - inward investment, Economic -
local infrastructure, Economic - new facilities,
Environment - hostile developments,
Economic - loss of funding, Reputational
damage

Nick Long Planning - Committees

Planning - Consultation

Planning - Evidence

Planning - Project Plan

Planning - Section 106 and CIL

Current Score
64

Indicator
1

Probability

4
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: CPPP have agreed new timetable
which comprises call-for-sites in Jan,
consultation in Feb/March, analysis over
spring, recommendations to cllrs after May
elections, further examination hearing
sessions in autumn, modifications
consultation in winter, receipt of Inspector's
Report in early 2019 and adoption by spring
2019.

Comment Last Updated:
02/01/2019 13:45:34

P
age 14



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Finance Description: Plans for
meeting the growing budget gap are not
delivered on time to ensure continued
sufficient resources to pay for services.
Consequences: Finance - WHBC runs out of
money, Reputational damage, Service delivery
- loss/reduction, Financial - affects on receipts,
Service delivery - can't met demand

Ka Ng Finance - Annual Governance Statement

Finance - budget challenge process

Finance - budget preparation process

Finance - budgetary control by managers

Finance - capital programme

Finance - external audit

Finance - Finance Procedure Rules

Finance - Financial Information System
(Agresso)

Finance - HRA Business Plan

Finance - internal audit

Finance - Medium Term Financial Plan

Finance - Treasury Management Policy

Finance - use and control of reserves and
balances

Property - Asset Management Plan

Current Score
50

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: There is a challenge to meet the
medium targets, but we have a large number
of robust controls and processes in place in
order for us to meet the savings requirements.
Work has been ongoing in quarter three on
setting the 2019/20 budget, following a review
of the medium term financial strategy. The draft
budget proposals are presented to Cabinet
and onto Full Council in quarter four. Based on
the budget and forecasts, the current gap for
2020/21 stands at around £1.5m. There are
large uncertainties around the financing for
2020/21, as many of the government funding
streams are under review, as is the business
rates apportionment/sharing system. A
number of Government consultaions have
been published in the recent months, and the
Council has responded to these consultations
within the requested timeframes, specifically
requesting more certainty over future years.

Comment Last Updated:
18/01/2019 14:12:20

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Communication Description:
Failure to communicate the Council's
priorities, to actively manage the Council's
reputation, to manage the Council's
messages, to mainstream communications
and build ownership and consensus,to
consider communications, or involve the
Comms Team. Consequences: Reputational
damage, Loss of trust, Comms - inability to
manage message

Ka Ng Comms - communication plan

Comms - Communications Team

Comms - Corporate Communications Strategy

Comms - media monitoring

Comms - media trained staff and Members

Comms - surveys

LGA Peer Challenge

Social Media Policy

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: A fully staffed Communications
team which meets the needs of all council
services (including the recently reintegrated
housing ones) has led to a re-evaluation of
this risk. Relations with local media outlets
also remain good at this time. This is in spite
of some challenging communications issues
over 2017-18.

Comment Last Updated:
13/02/2018 12:20:16

P
age 15



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - ICT Failure Description: ICT Failure
Critical failure of ICT services, for example due
to virus attack, and ransomware virus attacks,
which target computers running Microsoft
Windows encrypting the personal documents ,
lack of network capacity, hacking, hardware
failure, etc. Consequences: ICT - loss of
service

Ka Ng ICT - database updates

ICT - Disaster Recovery Plan

ICT - ICT Strategy

ICT - infrastructure review

ICT - malware detection

ICT - PSN Compliance Testing

ICT - Temporary PSTN connection

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: There is a continual battle against
attacks, but we have a large number of robust
controls, systems and processes in place in
order for us to be as protected as reasonably
possible, and risk is significantly reduced
because of this. Specific areas to note, in
relation to work undertaken in quarter three:
New mandatory online training was devloped
for staff in relation to cyber security A phishing
simulation was undertaken to help the Council
shape future training and communication
Internal audits were undertaken on software,
licensing and incident control, with the results
expected during quarter 4.

Comment Last Updated:
18/01/2019 14:17:08

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Data Protection Description: The
new General Data Protection Regulations
(GDPR) replaced the previous Data Protection
Act from May 18. It contains some onerous
obligations that have had an immediate
impact. As we handle people’s data we are
responsible for keeping it safe.
Consequences: Legal - Litigation, Intervention
by regulatory bodies, Reputational damage,
Legal - challenge, Additional costs

Ka Ng Governance - Data Protection Policies

ICT - data encryption

Internal Auditing

Procurement considerations - Data Protection
in Contracts

Current Score
32

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: GDPR legislation came into effect
in May 2018. In preparation for this a number
of policies and procedures were implemented,
and the Data Protection Officer worked with
services to identify the areas of greater risk.
Since the start of this process, the higher risks
have been adressed, and work continues with
services to minimise other risks where
possible. Software companies are starting to
progress with system improvements and
upgrades to ensure GDPR compliance.
Training has been rolled out to all staff &
Councillors. Since quarter two, the following
items are specific areas of work to highlight: -
Ongoing changes to legal agreements with
contractors - these continue to be worked on,
with many now agreed -New mandatory online
training has been developed for staff

Comment Last Updated:
18/01/2019 14:19:15

P
age 16



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Management of Council Owned
Non-Housing Property Assets Description:
Failure to provide and maintain council owned
non-housing property assets. Taking
opportunities to invest in assets.
Consequences: Economic development,
Unsafe assets

Ka Ng Asset Management Plan

Property Portfolio

Current Score
50

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Work continues on the property
investment project, with a number of
opportunities now complete or being finalised.
The Council has a capital work programme in
place to adequately maintain its non-housing
assets, and continues to be responsive to day
to day repairs and maintenance. During
quarter three the new Fire Safety Group met for
the first time, to consider fire risk at a more
strategic level, and align processes.

Comment Last Updated:
18/01/2019 14:26:52

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Effects of Brexit Description:
Preparing the borough and council for exiting
the EU by understanding the effect on 1)
communities and residents, 2) businesses
and economy, and 3) The council, along with
any actions we need to take. Consequences:
Additional costs, Economic - inward
investment, Economic development,
Community impact, Economic - loss of funding

Rob Bridge Brexit - appropriate action plan to be
produced

Brexit - LRF Strategic Co-ordinating Group

Brexit - MHCLG Seminar

Corporate Governance - engagement with
Councillors

ECMT Brexit Workshop

LGA Membership

LGA support and briefings

Current Score
48

Indicator
3

Probability

3
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The Chief Executive and Head of
Policy and Culture have attended an MHCLG
event around the potential impacts of Brexit.
Additionally there has been a Member and
Senior Officer workshop to increase
understanding and to formulate the council's
potential responses to the issues that may
arise.

Comment Last Updated:
03/01/2019 15:24:48

P
age 17



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Homelessness Description:
Failure to meet the demand of
homelessness due to lack of provision of
temporary housing and permanent housing
Consequences: Intervention by regulatory
bodies, Additional costs, Reputational
damage, Increased homelessness,
Community impact, Service delivery - can't
met demand, Legal - Regulatory, Financial
Implications, Risk to residents wellbeing

Simone
Chinman
Russell

AHP Governace / steering group

Allocations Policy

Development Strategy and Delivery Strategy

Finance - budgetary control by managers

Finance - HRA Business Plan

Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
Strategy

HRA Asset Strategy/Business Plan

Hsg Needs - Homeless Reduction Act

Partnership with Registered Providers and
nominations

Property Portfolio

Provision of temporary accommodation stock

Use of funding for homeless prevention

Current Score
48

Indicator
3

Probability

3
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: - The capacity of the team has been
increased in order to deliver the requirements
of the Homeless Reduction Act. Use of the
government’s flexible homeless support grant
is focussed on delivery of prevention initiatives
and housing options. - The Affordable Housing
Programme and use of S106 sites maximises
opportunities to deliver affordable housing. - A
review of the housing allocation policy will take
place over the next six months. - We have
recently acquired a property to be used as
temporary accommodation and are making
use of a fully decanted property on a temporary
basis, to avoid use of B&B

Comment Last Updated:
15/01/2019 09:10:26

P
age 18



Risk Report

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Planning - Tree failure Description: The risk of
failure of a tree with resultant risk to property or
life Consequences: H&S - Injuries and ill
health, Legal - Litigation, Additional costs

Ann
Macdonald

Planning - Contractors

Planning - Qualifications and Training

Planning - Risk Assessment

Planning - Trees

Planning - Volunteers

Current Score
50

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Constant monitoring of trees under
WHBC management identifies diseased trees
early. The effective management results in
fewer tree failures during storm events

Comment Last Updated:
12/10/2018 17:06:13

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Planning - Mature Lombardy Poplars
Description: Risk of failure of mature
Lombardy Poplar trees Consequences:
Unsafe assets, H&S - Injuries and ill health,
Legal - Litigation, Reputational damage

Ann
Macdonald

Planning - Contractors

Planning - Qualifications and Training

Planning - Risk Assessment

Planning - Trees

Planning - Volunteers

Current Score
100

Indicator
1

Probability

4
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Council has completed felling of
street Lombardy Poplars and will begin
replanting in Nov-March planting season.
Council has begun felling Lombardy Poplars
at Stanborough Park and will also investigate
Panshanger golf course and other Greenwich
Leisure Ltd sites. Risk remains high until all
mature examples have been removed.

Comment Last Updated:
02/01/2019 13:29:22

P
age 19



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Hsg Needs - Management of Temporary
Accommodation Description: Statutory duty to
provide accommodation to homeless
households, manage and maintain councils
temporary accommodation Consequences:
Reputational damage, Customer
dissatisfaction, Increased homelessness,
Legal - Litigation, Additional costs, Community
impact, Unsafe assets

David Trewick Provision of temporary accommodation stock

Staff

Current Score
64

Indicator
1

Probability

4
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: A project group is working on a
number of options to increase the supply of
temporary accommodation. This includes
enhancing prevention options, using current
vacant property earmarked for development,
commissioning a private sector leasing model
and extending the council's open market
purchase scheme to include all property types.
This is in addition to the continued work to
increase the supply of affordable housing via
the Affordable housing Programme.

Comment Last Updated:
08/10/2018 18:39:14

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Planning - Housing land supply Description:
Failure to maintain rolling five year housing
land supply, which puts Council at risk of
having to approve undesirable developments
Consequences: Reputational damage,
Additional costs, Intervention, Environment -
hostile developments, Financial - financial
penalties, Speculative planning applications

Sue Tiley Planning - AMR

Planning - Qualifications and Training

Current Score
80

Indicator
1

Probability

5
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Entec House appeal decision
concludes that emerging Local Plan is not at
an advanced stage and that the scale of
housing land supply falls considerably well
short of five years. This means there must be
presumption in favour of sustainable
development and greater weight must be
placed on housing proposals on brownfield
sites and employment land. The Council can
continue to resist speculative green belt
proposals for the time being, but there will be
tipping-point if the Local Plan is not
progressed and adopted in timely manner.

Comment Last Updated:
02/01/2019 13:22:14

P
age 20



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Housing Development - Availability of sites /
land / assets Description: Lack of suitable sites
for affordable homes for development . either for
direct provision by the council or disposal and
grant funding to Registered Providers at the
scale that is required . Sites need to be
deliverable , suitable to attract interest
Consequences: Increased homelessness,
Financial - financial penalties, Reputational
damage, Additional costs, Poor partnership
working

Jeremy
Morton

Executive Board

Current Score
64

Indicator
1

Probability

4
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: A new post has recently been
recruited to the Housing Development Team.
The postholder will have a focus on identifying
new opportunities and forming
partnerships/relationships with local land
owners/agents A range of initiatives are in
place to secure sites / land / assets - that
include- a review by consultants of the
councils HRA assets ( not general fund ) ,
confirmation via resources and corporate
property that a limted number of redundant
garage sites might be appropriate for
development.- active engagement with all our
external Registered Provider partners on new
opportunities- direct engagement with private
developers on opportunities . There are a
number of pipe line initiatiives currently being
considered with the expectation that some of
these will be feasible / viable and progress to
on site delivery . However housing
development is extremely complex with long
timefrmes and the risk to the coucncil
continues to be high Review / report awaited in
January from consultants on possible HRA
assests that may be suitable for residential
development. Ongoing negotiations with
developers seeking to secure addtional
affordble homes on exisitng residential sites
and new opportunites that may arise.

Comment Last Updated:
07/01/2019 13:31:15

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Housing Development - delivery of affordable
homes on S106 sites Description: Housing
development - securing RP interest in sites
and developers include affordable homes
Consequences: Increased homelessness,
Service delivery - can't met demand, Additional
costs, Reputational damage, Financial
Implications

Jeremy
Morton

Housing, Homelessness and Rough
Sleeping Strategy

Planning - Evidence

Planning - Section 106 and CIL

Registered Provider Frame work Group

Staff

Use of consultants

Current Score
64

Indicator
1

Probability

4
 

Impact

4
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Delivery of affordable homes on
S106 sites is governed by planning policy /
housing needs evidence and impacted on by
scheme viability. The Housing Development
Team negotiate the affordable requirement
with the objective of securing a policy
compliant scheme. This is not always
possible due to scheme viability. In order to
mitigate we are able to consider funding of
additional affordable homes as part of the
council’s Affordable Housing Programme.
Housing delivery is also impacted on by
market conditions and property values.
Recently a major scheme has improved
viability via Homes England grant funding.

Comment Last Updated:
11/03/2019 14:12:39

P
age 21



Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Planning - Hackitt Review Description:
Proposes tighter regulations for high rise
residential buildings (10+ storeys) and other
complex buildings. Proposes that LPAs should
help to identify such buildings. Proposes that
LPAs should consult fire/rescue bodies at pre-
app and plan app stage. Consequences: No
consequence

Colin Haigh Planning - Consultation

Current Score
50

Indicator
3

Probability

2
 

Impact

5
 

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Government has introduced new
Approved Document B which covers fire safety
of buildings, that will now be incorporated into
guidance and decisions made by Herts
Building Control Ltd.

Comment Last Updated:
02/01/2019 13:20:42

P
age 22



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
Audit Committee Progress Report

21 March 2019

Recommendations

Members are recommended to:
 Note the Internal Audit Progress Report for the 

period to 8 March 2019, and
 Note the proposed amendments to the 

2018/19 Annual Audit Plan.

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



Page 2

Contents

1 Introduction and Background
1.1 Purpose
1.2 Background

2 Audit Plan Update
2.1 Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Findings
2.7 Proposed Amendments to the 2018/19 Annual Audit 

Plan
2.9 High Priority Recommendations
2.12 Performance Management

Appendices

A   Progress against the 2018/19 Audit Plan

B   2018/19 Audit Plan Start Dates Agreed with 
Management

C Assurance and Finding Definitions 2018/19

Page 24



Page 3

1. Introduction and Background
Purpose of Report

1.1 This report details:

a) Progress made by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) in delivering 
the Council’s Annual Audit Plan for 2018/19 as at 8 March 2019.

b) Findings for the period 14 September 2018 to 8 March 2019.
c) Details of changes to the planned start dates of audits from the approved 

2018/19 Audit Plan.
d) Proposed amendments to the 2018/19 Annual Audit report
e) An update on performance management information as at 8 March 2019.

Background

1.2 The 2018/19 Annual Audit Plan was approved by the Audit Committee at its 
meeting on 22 March 2018.

1.3 The Audit Committee receives periodic updates of progress against the 
Annual Internal Audit Plan. This is the fourth report giving feedback on the 
delivery of the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan.

1.4 The work of Internal Audit is required to be reported to a Member Body so that 
the Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an essential component 
of corporate governance and gain assurance that its internal audit provision is 
fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is considered good practice that progress 
reports also include proposed amendments to the agreed annual audit plan.

2. Audit Plan Update
Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Audit Findings

2.1 As at 8 March 2019, 88% of the 2018/19 Audit Plan days had been delivered 
(the calculation excludes contingency).  Appendix A provides a status update 
on each individual project within the audit plan.

2.2 The following final reports have been issued since 4 January 2019 (cut-off 
date for the SIAS Update Report for 17 January 2019 Audit Committee):

Audit Title Date of 
Issue

Assurance 
Level

Number of 
Recommendations

Incident Management January 
2019 Satisfactory 3 Medium, 1 Low

Software Licence 
Management

January 
2019 Satisfactory 2 Medium, 1 Low

NDR January Good 2 Low

Page 25



Page 4

2019
Treasury Management March 2019 Good -

Agency Staff March 2019 Limited 1 High, 2 Medium, 1 
Low

2.3 Details on the status of all audits in this year’s plan can be found in Appendix 
A.

2.4 In respect of the 2018/19 plan, audits continue to be progressed in line with 
the agreed audit plan with 16 audits at final report stage, eight audits at draft 
report stage, four audits in fieldwork, and a further one audit at planning or 
allocated stage. Details of the status of all audits in this year’s plan can be 
found in Appendix A of this report.

Changes to Projected Audit Start Dates

2.5 To help the Committee assess progress in delivering the 2018/19 Audit Plan, 
Appendix B details agreed start dates. These dates were agreed with 
management and resources allocated accordingly. This schedule was 
designed to facilitate smoother delivery of the audit plan through the year.

2.6 There have been five days allocated from contingency to the follow up of 
recommendations. As a result, the contingency balance is currently 0 days.

2.7 There are no proposed changes to audit start dates to be reported to the 
Committee.

Proposed Amendments to Audit Plan

2.8 Since the September meeting of this Committee, there has not been any 
changes to the 2018/19 Audit Plan agreed with Officers of the Council.

High Priority Recommendations

2.9 Members will be aware that a Final Audit Report is issued when it has been 
agreed by management; this includes an agreement to implement the 
recommendations that have been made. 

2.10 The Council’s Principal Governance Officer is responsible for following up the 
implementation status of internal audit recommendations. 

2.11 We have made one new high priority recommendation as a consequence of 
the work undertaken in the audits detailed in paragraph 2.2 above. This 
recommendation relates to the use and retention of the corporate Agency 
Worker Approval Form.

Performance Management

Reporting of Audit Plan Delivery Progress

Page 26



Page 5

2.12 Performance indicators and associated targets are approved by the SIAS 
Board on an annual basis. The actual performance for the Council against the 
targets that are monitored in year is set out in the table below.

2.13 As at 8 March 2019, actual performance for Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
against the targets that can be monitored in year was as shown in the table 
below:

Performance Indicator Annual 
Target

Profiled 
Target to 8 
March 2019

Actual to 8 March 
2019

1. Planned Days – percentage of 
actual billable days against 
planned chargeable days 
completed (excluding unused 
contingency)

95%
91%

(290 / 317 
days)

88%
(279 / 317 days)

2. Planned Projects – percentage 
of actual completed projects to 
draft report stage against planned 
completed projects

95%
87%

(26 / 30  
projects)

83%
(25 / 30 projects)

3. Client Satisfaction with 
Conduct of the Audit – 
percentage of client satisfaction 
questionnaires returned at 
‘satisfactory’ level 

100% 100%
100%

(10 / 13 survey’s 
returned)

4. Number of High Priority Audit 
Recommendations agreed 95% 95% 100%

2.14 In addition, the performance targets listed below are annual in nature.  
Performance against these targets will be reported on in the 2018/19 Head of 
Assurance’s Annual Report:

 5. External Auditors’ Satisfaction – the Annual Audit Letter should 
formally record whether or not the External Auditors are able to rely upon 
the range and the quality of SIAS’ work.

 6. Annual Plan – prepared in time to present to the March meeting of each 
Audit Committee.  If there is no March meeting then the plan should be 
prepared for the first meeting of the financial year.

 7. Head of Assurance’s Annual Report – presented at the Audit 
Committee’s first meeting of the civic year.

Page 27



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2018/19 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN

Page 6

2018/19 SIAS Audit Plan

RECOMMENDATIONS
AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 

ASSURANCE C H M L

AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED
STATUS / 

COMMENTS

Key Financial Systems
General Ledger 8 Yes 7.5 Draft Report Issued
Debtors 10 Yes 9.5 Draft Report Issued
Creditors 10 Yes 9.5 Draft Report Issued
Treasury Management Good 0 0 0 0 6 Yes 6 Final Report Issued
Council Tax 10 Yes 9.5 Draft Report Issued
NDR Good 0 0 0 2 10 Yes 10 Final Report Issued
Benefits 10 Yes 6 In Fieldwork
Payroll 6 Yes 5.5 Draft Report Issued
Housing Rents 10 Yes 8.5 In Fieldwork
Operational Audits

Budget Monitoring Good 0 0 0 0 13 Yes 13 Final Report Issued

Community Protection Notices Satisfactory 0 0 1 2 12 Yes 12 Final Report Issued
Public Health 10 Yes Allocated
Customer Services – 3C’s Good 0 0 0 2 10 Yes 10 Final Report Issued
Voids Management 12 Yes 3.5 In Fieldwork
Housing Allocations 12 Yes 4 In Fieldwork
General Data Protection 
Regulations 8 Yes 7.5 Draft Report Issued

Agency Staff Limited 0 1 2 1 15 Yes 15 Final Report Issued
Use of Consultants (including 
solicitors, barristers and 10 Yes 9.5 Draft Report Issued

P
age 28



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2018/19 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN

Page 7

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED
STATUS / 

COMMENTSC H M L

management consultants)

Health and Safety Satisfactory 0 0 2 1 10 Yes 10 Final Report Issued
Parking Permits Satisfactory 0 0 1 1 8 Yes 8 Final Report Issued
DFG Grant Certification Not Assessed 0 0 0 0 2 Yes 2 Final Report Issued
Fire Safety Satisfactory 0 0 3 0 10 Yes 10 Final Report Issued
LEP Grant Not Assessed 0 0 0 0 5 Yes 5 Final Report Issued
Procurement / Contracts
Street Scene Contract / 
Procurement Good 0 0 0 1 5 Yes 5 Final Report Issued

Counter Fraud
Anti-Fraud Arrangements – 
Follow Up 0 Yes Cancelled

Corporate Governance and Risk Management
Corporate Governance and 
Risk Management 5 Yes 4.5 Draft Report Issued

IT Audits
Incident Management Satisfactory 0 0 3 1 11 Yes 11 Final Report Issued
Software Licence Management Satisfactory 0 0 2 1 11 Yes 11 Final Report Issued
PSN Accreditation 0 Yes Cancelled
Shared Learning and Joint Reviews
Joint Reviews 2 2
Shared Learning 3 3 Through Year
Contingency & Ad Hoc Activity

P
age 29



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2018/19 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN

Page 8

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED
STATUS / 

COMMENTSC H M L

Contingency & Ad Hoc Activity 0 As Required

Strategic Support
Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
2017/18 5 Yes 5 Complete

Audit Committee 8 Yes 8 Through Year
Client Meetings 6 Yes 6 Through Year
Liaison with External Audit 1 Yes 1 Through Year
Progress Monitoring 8 Yes 8 Through Year
SIAS Development 5 Yes 5 Through Year
2019/20 Audit Planning 5 Yes 5 Through Year
Follow up recommendations 5 Yes 3.5 Through Year
2017/18 Projects requiring completion
Community Engagement 4 Yes 3.5 Draft Report Issued
Tree Management Satisfactory 0 0 1 3 8 Yes 8 Final Report Issued
Standards and Ethics Satisfactory 0 0 0 3 7.5 Yes 7.5 Final Report Issued
Finalisation of Projects Not Applicable 0.5 Yes 0.5 Complete
Total – Welwyn Hatfield B.C.  0 1 15 18 317 279

P
age 30



APPENDIX B – 2018/19 AUDIT PLAN START DATES AGREED WITH MANAGEMENT

Page 9

April May June July August September

Agency Staff

Final Report Issued

Community Protection 
Notices

Final Report Issued

Parking Permits

Final Report Issued

Customer Services – 3C’s

Final Report Issued

Budget Monitoring

Final Report Issued

Use of Consultants

Draft Report Issued

Tree Management (17/18)

Final Report Issued

Health and Safety

Final Report Issued

PSN Accreditation

Cancelled

Street Scene Procurement

Final Report Issued

Incident Management

Final Report Issued

Anti-Fraud Arrangements 
Follow-Up

Cancelled

Standards & Ethics 
(17/18)

Final Report Issued

LEP Grant

Final Report Issued

Fire Safety

Final Report Issued

DFG Grant Certification

Final Report Issued

Community Engagement 
(17/18)

Draft Report Issued

October November December January February March

General Ledger

Draft Report Issued

Treasury Management

Final Report Issued

Benefits

In Fieldwork

Voids Management

In Fieldwork

Public Health

Allocated

Risk Management

Draft Report Issued

Debtors

Draft Report Issued

Council Tax

Draft Report Issued

Payroll

Draft Report Issued

Housing Allocations

In Fieldwork

Creditors

Draft Report Issued

NDR

Final Report Issued

Housing Rents

In Fieldwork

Software Licence 
Management

Final Report Issued

GDPR – deferred from 
April

Draft Report Issued

P
age 31



APPENDIX C – ASSURANCE AND FINDINGS DEFINITIONS 2018/19

Page 10

Assurance Level Definition

Good
The design and operation of the internal control framework is effective, thereby ensuring that the key risks 
in scope are being well managed and core objectives will likely be achieved. There are minor reportable 
audit findings.

Satisfactory The internal control framework is largely working well in managing the key risks in scope, with some audit 
findings related to the current arrangements.  

Limited
The system of internal control is only partially effective, with important audit findings in key areas. 
Improvement in the design and/or operation of the control environment is necessary to gain assurance 
risks are being managed to an acceptable level, and core objectives will be achieved.

No The system of internal control has serious gaps, and controls are not effective in managing the key risks 
in scope. It is highly unlikely that core objectives will be met without urgent management intervention.

Priority Level Definition

C
or

po
ra

te

Critical
Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to the organisation as a whole, 
i.e. reputation, financial resources and / or compliance with regulations. Management action to 
implement the appropriate controls is required immediately.

High
Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control environment, which, if 
untreated by management intervention, is highly likely to put achievement of core service 
objectives at risk. Remedial action is required urgently.

Medium
Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, are likely to put 
achievement of some of the core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is required in a 
timely manner.Se

rv
ic

e

Low / Advisory
Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, which, if adopted, will 
enhance the control environment. The appropriate solution should be implemented as soon as is 
practically possible.

P
age 32



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
Audit Committee 

2019/20 Internal Audit Plan Report

21 March 2019

Recommendation

Members are recommended to approve the 
proposed Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20

Page 33

Agenda Item 10



Page 1

Contents

1. Introduction and Background
1.1 Purpose
1.2 Background

2. Audit Planning Process
2.1 Planning Principles
2.2 Approach to Planning
2.4 Planning Context
2.7 Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

3. Performance Management
3.1 Update Reporting
3.3 Performance Indicators

Appendices
A Proposed Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Audit Plan 

2019/20

B Proposed Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Audit Plan 
2019/20 – Reserve List

C Audit Start Dates Agreed with Management

Page 34



Page 2

1. Introduction and Background
Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide Members with the proposed Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council (the Council) 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan.

Background

1.2 The Council’s Internal Audit Plan sets out the programme of internal 
audit work for the year ahead, and forms part of the Council’s wider 
assurance framework. It supports the requirement to produce an audit 
opinion on the overall internal control environment of the Council, as 
well as a judgement on the robustness of risk management and 
governance arrangements, contained in the Head of Internal Audit 
annual report.

1.3 The Shared Internal Audit Service’s (SIAS) Audit Charter which was 
presented to the June 2018 meeting of this Committee shows how the 
Council and SIAS work together to provide a modern and effective 
internal audit service. This approach complies with the requirements of 
the United Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 
which came into effect on 1 April 2013 and revised on 1 April 2018. An 
updated version of the SIAS Audit Charter will be brought to the June 
2019 Audit Committee meeting for Member approval.

1.4 The PSIAS require that the audit plan incorporates or is linked to a 
strategic or high-level statement which:

 Outlines how the service will be developed in accordance with the 
internal audit charter

 Details how the internal audit plan will be delivered
 Evidences how the service links to organisational objectives and 

priorities

1.5 Section 2 of this report details how SIAS complies with this 
requirement.

2. Audit Planning Process
Planning Principles

2.1 SIAS audit planning is underpinned by the following principles:

a) Focus of assurance effort on the Council’s key issues, obligations, 
outcomes and objectives, critical business processes and projects 
and principal risks. This approach ensures coverage of both 
strategic and key operational issues.

Page 35



Page 3

b) Maintenance of an up-to-date awareness of the impact of the 
external and internal environment on the Council’s control 
arrangements.

c) Use of a risk assessment methodology to determine priorities for 
audit coverage based, as Audit as possible, on management’s view 
of risk.

d) Dialogue and consultation with key stakeholders to ensure an 
appropriate balance of assurance needs. This approach includes 
recognition that in a resource-constrained environment, all needs 
cannot be met.

e) Identification of responsibilities where services are delivered in 
partnership.

f) In-built flexibility to ensure that new risks and issues are 
accommodated as they emerge.

g) Capacity to deliver key commitments including governance work.

h) Capacity to respond to management requests for assistance with 
special investigations, consultancy and other forms of advice.

Approach to Planning

2.2 In order to comply with the requirements of the PSIAS, SIAS applies a 
methodology at all its partners which contains the following elements:

Local and National Horizon Scanning

SIAS reviews, on an ongoing basis:
 Key committee reports at each client and identifies emerging 

risks and issues;
 The professional and national press for risks and issues 

emerging at national level.

Consideration of risk management arrangements

SIAS assesses the risk maturity of the Council and based on this 
assessment, determines the extent to which information contained 
within the Council’s risk register informs the identification of potential 
audit areas.

Confirmation of the council’s objectives and priorities

SIAS confirms the current objectives and priorities of the Council. This 
information is used to confirm that identified auditable areas will provide 

Page 36



Page 4

assurance on areas directly linked to the achievement of the Council’s 
objectives and priorities.

2.3 The approach to audit planning for 2019/20 has been characterised by:

a) Detailed discussions with senior managers and other key officers 
within the Council to confirm auditable areas and elicit high level 
detail of the scope of audits.  This process incorporates the 
following four steps to assist in the later prioritisation of projects:

Risk Assessment
Managers and SIAS agree the level of risk associated with an 
identified auditable area 

Other sources of Assurance
Managers are asked whether assurance in the auditable area is 
obtained from other assurance providers e.g. External Audit or the 
Health and Safety Executive.  This approach ensures that provision 
of assurance is not duplicated.

Significance
Managers assess how significant the auditable area is in terms of 
the achievement of corporate or service objectives and priorities.

Timings
Managers identify when an audit should be undertaken to add most 
value.

b) Proposed plans are based on the information obtained from the 
planning meetings.  Details of audits that have not been included in 
the proposed draft plan as a result of resource limitations are 
reported to senior management and the audit committee.

c) The proposed 2019/20 plans for all SIAS partner councils are then 
scrutinised and cross-partner audits highlighted.

d) The views of the Chair of the Audit Committee are sought to 
confirm that their requirements are adequately addressed.

This approach ensures that our work gives assurance on what is 
important, focussing on those areas of highest risk, and supports the 
Council in achieving its objectives.

The Planning Context

2.4 The context within which local authorities provide their services 
remains challenging:

 Latest forecasts show a cloudy outlook for the UK economy, 
reflecting increasing national and international uncertainties. Local 

Page 37



Page 5

authorities will need to be attuned to the impact on their local 
economies and any direct investments of their own.

 Service demands continues to rise, driven by complex needs, an 
ageing population and challenges in the healthcare system. With 
reduced financial support, local authorities will have to continue to 
become more innovative and commercial.

 Digital transformation continues to offer opportunities along with 
significant risks. The innovative use of technology is helping to 
reduce costs, as well as be more efficient and transparent. However, 
factors such as security, privacy, ethical and regulatory compliance 
are a recognised concern.

 Major national programmes in areas like business rates, public 
health and housing mean the overall financial environment remains 
relatively unstable.  

2.5 The resultant efficiency and transformation programme that councils 
are in the process of implementing and developing continues to 
profoundly alter each organisation’s nature. Such developments are 
accompanied by potentially significant governance, risk management 
and internal control change.

2.6 The challenge of giving value in this context, means that Internal Audit 
needs to:

 Meet its core responsibilities, which are to provide appropriate 
assurance to Members and senior management on the 
effectiveness of governance, risk management and control 
arrangements in delivering the achievement of Council objectives;

 Identify and focus its effort on areas of significance and risk, 
assisting the organisation in managing change effectively, and 
ensuring that core controls remain effective; 

 Give assurance which covers the control environment in relation to 
new developments, using audit approaches such as ‘control risk 
self assessments’ or ‘continuous assurance’ where appropriate

 Retain flexibility in the audit plan and ensure it remains current and 
relevant as the financial year progresses

Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

2.7 The draft plan for 2019/20 is included at Appendix A and B and 
contains a high-level proposed outline scope for each audit; Appendix 
C details the agreed start months. The number of days purchased in 
2019/20 has reduced by 5 days, which for Welwyn Hatfield Borough 

Page 38



Page 6

Council equates to a reduction from 315 days (in 2018/19) to 310 days 
(in 2019/20). 

2.8 The table below shows the estimated allocation of the total annual 
number of purchased audit days for the year and the corresponding 
allocated budgets for 2018/19, as also reported to Audit Committee on 
21 March 2018, for comparison and to demonstrate where the audit 
days saving has been achieved.

2019/20 
Days

  % 2018/19 
Days

%

Key Financial Systems 62 20 80 25
Corporate Audits 65 20.5
Operational Audits 75 24

121 38

Procurement / Contracts 18 6 10 3
IT Audits 22 7 30 9
Corporate Governance / Anti-
Fraud 0 0 10 4

Consultancy 5 2 0 0
Joint Reviews and Shared 
Learning 5 2 5 2

Strategic Support* 43 13.5 36 11
Contingency and other 3 1 5 2
Carry forward work from 18/19 12 4 20 6

Total allocated days 310 100% 317** 100%

* This covers supporting the Audit Committee, monitoring delivery of 
the audit plan, client liaison and planning for 2020/21.
** An additional 2 days were included in 2018/19 as agreed with the 
SIAS Audit Manager. 

2.9 A list of reserve audits that will be considered as a substitute for an 
agreed planned review that is cancelled in-year is presented at 
Appendix B.

2.10 Any significant audit plan changes agreed between Management and 
SIAS will be brought before this committee for approval through the 
usual plan update reporting cycle.  

2.11 Members will note the inclusion of a provision for the completion of 
projects that relate to 2018/19. The structure of Internal Audit’s 
programme of work is such that full completion of every aspect of the 
work in an annual plan is not always possible; especially given the high 
dependence on client officers during a period where there are 
competing draws on their time, e.g. year end closure procedures.

Page 39



Page 7

  
2.12 The nature of assurance work is such that enough activity must have 

been completed in the financial year, for the Head of Assurance to give 
an overall opinion on the Authority’s internal control environment. In 
general, the tasks associated with the total completion of the plan, 
which includes the finalisation of all reports and negotiation of the 
appropriate level of agreed mitigations, is not something that adversely 
affects delivery of the overall opinion. The impact of any outstanding 
work is monitored closely during the final quarter by SIAS in 
conjunction with the Section 151 Officer.  

3. Performance Management
Update Reporting

3.1 SIAS is required to report its work to a Member Body so that the 
Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an essential 
component of corporate governance and gain assurance that its 
internal audit provision is fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is 
considered good practice that progress reports also include proposed 
amendments to the agreed annual audit plan. Progress against the 
agreed plan for 2019/20 and any proposed changes will be reported to 
this Committee four times in the 2019/20 civic year.

  
3.2 SIAS will report on the implementation of agreed high priority 

recommendations as part of the update reporting process.

Performance Indicators

3.3 Annual performance indicators were approved at the SIAS Board 
meeting on the 7 September 2011 and are reviewed annually by the 
Board. Details of the targets set for 2019/20 are shown in the table 
below. Actual performance against target will be included in the update 
reports to this Committee. 

Performance Indicator Performance Target

1. Planned Days 
percentage of actual billable 
days against planned 
chargeable days completed.

95%

2. Planned Projects
percentage of actual completed 
projects to draft report stage 
against planned completed 
projects
Note: 

95%

Page 40



Page 8

To be based on the judgement 
of the SIAS management team 
and representing the best 
estimate as to a reasonable 
expectation of progress on the 
audit plan.

3. Client Satisfaction
percentage of client 
satisfaction questionnaires 
returned at ‘satisfactory’ level.

100%

4. Number of High Priority 
Audit Recommendations 
agreed

95%

5. External Auditor Satisfaction External Auditors are able to 
rely upon the range and quality 
of SIAS’ work

Not applicable at WHBC as 
External Audit does not 
currently place reliance on the 
work of SIAS

   
6. Annual Plan Presented to the March 

meeting of each Audit 
Committee. Or if there is no 
March meeting then presented 
to the first meeting of the new 
financial year

 
7. Head of Assurance’s Annual 

Report
Presented to the first meeting 
of each Audit Committee in the 
new financial year.

Page 41



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

Page 9

Audit Proposed Scope, Audit Sponsor and Origin Proposed 
Quarter

Proposed 
Days

Audit Sponsor Head of Resources
Origin Cyclical / Annual Audit

Agresso 
(Financial 
System) Proposed Scope

Detailed scope to be agreed with management when the audit commences. A high level 
scope could include:
a) System Access
b) Reconciliations
c) Supplier set up and amendment
d) Authorisations
e) Reporting

Q3 16

Audit Sponsor Head of Resources
Origin Cyclical / Annual Audit

Treasury 
Management Proposed Scope

A full audit is scheduled with areas of coverage potentially including:
a) Treasury Management Practices, Policies and Procedures,
b) Reporting Arrangements,
c) Service Continuity and Training,
d) Cash Flow Management,
e) Counter-Party Risk,
f) Transactions,
g) On-line Banking and Investments,
h) Capital and Interest Payments,
i) Performance Monitoring, and
j) External Service Providers.

Q3 8

Audit Sponsor Head of Resources
Origin Cyclical / Annual Audit

Payroll
Proposed Scope

A full audit is scheduled with areas of coverage potentially including:
a) starters, leavers,
b) transfers and amendments, 
c) payroll payments (including scheduling and BACS),
d) pension contribution rates, 
e) payroll deductions and third party payments, reconciliations, 
f) management exception reports

Q3 8

Audit Sponsor Head of Resources
Origin Cyclical / Annual Audit

K
EY

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L 
SY

ST
EM

S

NDR
Proposed Scope

A full audit is scheduled with areas of coverage potentially including:
a) Policies, procedures and regulatory compliance,
b) Reconciliation between NDR system and Valuation lists,
c) Multiplier setting,

Q3 10

P
age 42



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

Page 10

Audit Proposed Scope, Audit Sponsor and Origin Proposed 
Quarter

Proposed 
Days

d) Voids and reliefs,
e) In-year Billing,
f) Collection and refunds,
g) Recovery, enforcement and write offs,
h) Reconciliation between NDR system and general ledger,
i) Performance monitoring and management, and
j) System access

Audit Sponsor Head of Resources
Origin Cyclical / Annual Audit

Council Tax
Proposed Scope

A full audit is scheduled with areas of coverage potentially including:
a) Policies, Procedures and Legislation,
b) Amendment to Council Tax records,
c) Discounts and Exemptions,
d) In-year Billing,
e) Collection and Refunds,
f) Recovery, Enforcement and Write Offs,
g) Reconciliation between Council Tax system and General Ledger, 
h) Performance monitoring and Performance, and
i) System access.

Q3 10

Audit Sponsor Head of Resources
Origin Cyclical / Annual Audit

Benefits
Proposed Scope

A full audit is scheduled with areas of coverage potentially including:
a) Policies, procedures and set-up of standing data,  
b) Assessments and backdating, 
c) Payments,
d) Recovery of Overpayments, 
e) Reconciliations, 
f) Performance Monitoring, and
g) Security of Data.

Q3 10

P
age 43



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

Page 11

Audit Proposed Scope, Audit Sponsor and Origin Proposed 
Quarter

Proposed 
Days

Audit Sponsor Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services)
Origin Horizon Scanning

Data Quality of 
Performance 
Information Proposed Scope

To provide assurance that the arrangements in place to monitor and report performance 
information are robust, performance data is reliable and has integrity and third party data 
has been subject to sufficient quality checks. In addition, assessing the use of non-
reported performance information and the value of collecting such data.

Q1 15

Audit Sponsor Corporate Management Team
Origin Horizon Scanning – emerging area of riskFinancial 

Resilience of 
Suppliers Proposed Scope

To provide assurance that effective controls are in place with respect to supplier 
management, sufficient scenario planning has taken place, business continuity models are 
in place and tested, effective risk management  and that robust due diligence is completed 
at the contract award. 

Q2 15

Audit Sponsor Head of Policy and Culture
Origin Key ProjectCustomer First 

Strategy Proposed Scope
To provide assurance that governance arrangements are appropriate to deliver the 
strategy, suitable action plans are in place and are monitored by management and that the 
decision making framework is sufficient and operating in practice.

Q2 15

Audit Sponsor Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance)
Origin Management Request

Recruitment
Proposed Scope

To provide assurance that the Council’s policies and procedures relating to recruitment 
are applied consistently across the Council. In addition, the review will focus on best 
practice being identified and followed and record keeping, 

Q1 15

Audit Sponsor Chief Executive
Origin Corporate Risk Register

C
O

R
PO

R
A

TE
 A

U
D

IT
S

Brexit
Proposed Scope

To provide assurance that the Council has sufficiently planned for Brexit, including 
consideration of the Brexit Checklist and response to guidance issued by the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government.

Q1 5

P
age 44



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

Page 12

Audit Proposed Scope, Audit Sponsor and Origin Proposed 
Quarter

Proposed 
Days

Audit Sponsor Head of Administration and Law
Origin Change in key officerFreedom of 

Information Proposed Scope
To provide assurance that there are policies and procedures in place for FOI requests and 
that these are applied in practice. The audit will focus on record keeping, responses and 
compliance with statutory requirements.

Q4 10

Audit Sponsor Head of Administration and Law
Origin Horizon ScanningApprenticeship 

Levy Proposed Scope
To provide assurance that the Council is complying with the regulations and guidance 
relating to payment of the apprenticeship levy, and that this area is being exploited to its 
full potential by Council managers.

Q1 10

Audit Sponsor Head of Housing Operations
Origin Cyclical / Annual Audit

Housing Rents
Proposed Scope

To provide assurance that the annual rent setting is approved and completed in a timely 
manner, income is collected and recorded accurately, rent arrears are actively pursued 
and written off where necessary and that rent arrears are effectively monitored and 
reported.

Q4 10

Audit Sponsor Head of Resources
Origin Management RequestInsurance
Proposed Scope To provide assurance over the insurance arrangements, including cover, premiums and 

claim handling.

Q1 10

Audit Sponsor Head of Housing Operations
Origin Operational Risk Register

Universal Credit
Proposed Scope

To provide assurance that sufficient controls exists to manage the impact of Universal 
Credit on rent arrears, sufficient proactive work has taken place to assist tenants and 
arrangement are appropriate for partnership working with other agencies.

Q2 10

Audit Sponsor Head of Community and Housing Strategy
Origin New LegislationHomelessness 

Reduction Act Proposed Scope
To provide assurance that the Council has adequately responded to the new 
Homelessness Reduction Act legislation and assess the impact the new legislation has on 
temporary accommodation demands and spending.

Q4 10

Audit Sponsor Head of Housing Operations
Origin Management Request

O
PE

R
A

TI
O

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
S

Anti-Social 
Behaviour Proposed Scope

To provide assurance over the arrangements for handling anti-social behaviour. The 
scope will potentially include some of the following:

a) Public space protection orders,

Q4 10

P
age 45



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

Page 13

b) CCTV,
c) Reporting,
d) Case Management,
e) Information sharing,
f) Enforcement

Audit Sponsor Head of Housing Maintenance
Origin Follow UpFire Safety
Proposed Scope To follow up on the recommendations made in the 2018/19 audit.

Q1 3

Audit Sponsor Head of Resources
Origin Annual CertificationDFG Grant 

Certification Proposed Scope
To undertake sufficient audit work to enable the Head of Audit to certify the Disabled 
Facilities Capital Grant form, as required by the Department of Communities and Local 
Government.

Q2 2

Audit Sponsor Head of Resources
Origin Major ProjectAgresso Upgrade 

Consultancy Proposed Scope Provision of controls advice during implementation phase of the new financial system.
Q1 5

Audit Proposed Scope, Audit Sponsor and Origin Proposed 
Quarter

Proposed 
Days

Audit Sponsor Head of Environment
Origin Major ContractStreet Scene 

Mobilisation Proposed Scope
To provide assurance that robust contract management arrangements are in place 
(including management of new and old suppliers), sufficient plans are in place for data 
transfer, transfer of staff and service delivery continuity.

Q2 12

Audit Sponsor Head of Housing Maintenance
Origin Key Contract

C
O

N
TR

A
C

T 
A

U
D

IT
S

Housing 
Maintenance 
Contract 
Procurement Proposed Scope

To provide assurance that the initial stages of the procurement process are meeting the 
objectives and that the procurement process as a whole is subject to robust governance 
including oversight of project timings, fairness in assessments and the use of external 
consultants.

Q4 6

P
age 46



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

Page 14

Audit Proposed Scope, Audit Sponsor and Origin Proposed 
Quarter

Proposed 
Days

Audit Sponsor Head of Resources
Origin Corporate Risk RegisterGeneral Data 

Protection 
Regulations 
(GDPR) Proposed Scope

To provide assurance that arrangements are in place to allow all service areas to comply 
with GDPR, that these are applied in practice and that sufficient training has been 
completed by all officers.

Q3 10

Audit Sponsor Head of Resources
Origin Corporate Risk Register

IT
 A

U
D

IT
S

Cyber Risks
Proposed Scope

To provide assurance that effective controls are in place to mitigate against cyber risks. 
This may include management of cyber security (risk assessments, policies and 
procedures), awareness (training, roles and responsibilities, communication and 
escalation arrangements), network security (patch management, anti-virus, anti-malware, 
firewall configuration and review of arrangements) and privileged accounts (elevated 
access rights and removal of rights).

Q1 12

Audit Proposed Scope, Audit Sponsor and Origin Proposed 
Quarter

Proposed 
Days

Joint Reviews Joint review topics to be agreed by the SIAS Board. TBC 2

JO
IN

T 
R

EV
IE

W
S

Shared Learning Production of SIAS Quarterly Shared Learning papers. Through 
Year 3

Audit Proposed Scope, Audit Sponsor and Origin Proposed 
Quarter

Proposed 
Days

Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
2018/19 To prepare and agree the Head of Internal Audit Opinion 2018/19. Q1 3

Audit Committee To provide service linked with the preparation, agreement and presentation of Audit 
Committee reports.

Through 
Year 8

Client Meetings Meetings with the Council's Audit Champion, S151 Officer and other key officers and 
attendance at corporate groups.

Through 
Year 6

ST
R

A
TE

G
IC

 
SU

PP
O

R
T 

A
N

D
 

C
O

N
TI

N
G

EN
C

Y

External Audit Liaison Meetings with the Council's External Auditor, as required. N/a 1

P
age 47



APPENDIX A – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

Page 15

Progress Monitoring Audit Plan monitoring and reporting. Through 
Year 8

SIAS Development Included to reflect the Council's contribution to developing the partnership. Through 
Year 5

2020/21 Audit Planning Provision of services to prepare, agree and report the 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan. Q3 / 4 6

Recommendations Follow Up Quarterly follow up of recommendations in line with Audit Committees Through 
Year 6

Contingency To provide for adequate response to risks or issues emerging in 2019/20 N/a 3
2018/19 Projects Requiring 
Completion Completion of outstanding work from 2018/19. Q1 12

P
age 48



APPENDIX B – PROPOSED WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20 – RESERVE 
LIST

Page 16

Audit Proposed Scope, Audit Sponsor and Origin
Audit Sponsor Head of PlanningEstate 

Management 
Scheme Proposed Scope

To provide assurance that the structure of EMS is suitable to support service delivery, the design of the service is 
fit for purpose and that systems are operational. In addition, where time permits, the review may cover 
enforcement arrangements.

Audit Sponsor Head of Public Health and Protection

Food Safety Proposed Scope
To provide assurance that the inspection regime is operating effectively, risk assessments are completed, revisits 
are carried out where necessary and the authorisation given to officers is suitable in line with competency and job 
role.

Audit Sponsor Head of Housing Operations

Right to Buy Proposed Scope
To provide assurance that robust policies and procedures are in place to support the right to buy process and that 
there are effective in operation. In addition, to ensure compliance with statutory timeframes and right to buy 
pooling limits with respect to forecasting of sales and expenditure.

Audit Sponsor Corporate Director (Housing and Communities)Housing 
Development 
Company

Proposed Scope To provide assurance that effective governance arrangements are in place for the Housing Development 
Company, including board membership and decision making.

Audit Sponsor Head of Resources

R
ES

ER
VE

 L
IS

T

Purchasing 
Cards Proposed Scope To provide assurance that all controls relating to the move to an electronic system for purchasing cards are 

operating effectively.

P
age 49



APPENDIX C – AUDIT START DATES AGREED WITH MANAGEMENT

Page 17

April May June July August September

Apprenticeship Levy Financial Resilience of 
Suppliers Insurance Customer First Strategy

Data Quality of 
Performance 
Information

Street Scene 
Mobilisation

Agresso Upgrade Recruitment Cyber Risks Universal Credit DFG Grant Certification

Brexit

2018/19 Projects 
requiring completion

October November December January February March

Agresso NDR Homelessness 
Reduction Act Freedom of Information

Treasury Management Council Tax Anti-Social Behaviour Housing Maintenance 
Contract Procurement

Payroll Housing Benefit Housing Rents

General Data 
Protection Regulations

P
age 50



Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council
Audit planning report 
Year ended 31 March 2019

February 2019

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 11



2

Private and Confidential 18 February 2019

Dear Audit Committee Members

Audit planning report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the 
Audit Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2018/19 audit in accordance with the requirements of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of Responsibilities issued by 
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to ensure that our audit is 
aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our 
planned audit strategy in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee and management, and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 21 March 2019 as well as understand whether there are other matters which you 
consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully 

Andrew Brittain

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
The Campus
Welwyn Garden City
Hertfordshire
AL8 6AE

P
age 52



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different 
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National 
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit Committee and management of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we 
might state to the Audit Committee and management of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit Committee and management of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council for this report or for the opinions we have 
formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our 
2018/19 audit 
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit 
materiality04 Scope of our 

audit05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit 
timeline07 Independence08

Value for 
Money Risks03

V
F
M

P
age 53

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/


4

Overview of our 2018/19 audit  
strategy01 01

P
age 54



5

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus 

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Misstatements due to fraud or error Fraud risk

No change in risk 
or focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud 
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and 
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. In addition to our overall response, 
we consider where these risks may manifest themselves and identify separate 
fraud risks as necessary below.

Misstatements due to fraud or error 
– capitalisation of revenue spend

Fraud risk

Change in risk or 
focus

In considering how the risk of management override may present itself, we 
conclude that this is primarily through management taking action to override 
controls and manipulate in year financial transactions that impact the medium to 
longer term projected financial position. A key way of improving the revenue 
position is through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure. The 
Council has a significant fixed asset base and a material capital programme and 
therefore has the potential to materially impact the revenue position through 
inappropriate capitalisation.

Valuation of property, including 
investment properties

Inherent risk

No change in risk or 
focus

Valuation of land and property assets is a significant accounting estimate that, in 
the context of an uncertain economic environment, has a material impact on the 
financial statements. The council commissions property valuation specialists to 
determine asset valuations and small changes in assumptions when valuing these 
assets can have a material impact on the financial statements and therefore the 
balances are susceptible to misstatement. 

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit Committee with 
an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.  

P
age 55



6

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus 

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Pension Valuation and Disclosures Inherent risk

No change in risk 
or focus

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council 
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in which it is an admitted body.

The Council’s current pension fund deficit is a material and sensitive item and the 
Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. 

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by 
the Actuary. Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and 
judgement and due to the nature, volume and size of the transactions, in the 
current uncertain economic environment, we consider this to be a higher 
inherent risk.

New Accounting Standards Inherent risk New risk identified 
this year.

IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) and IFRS 15 (Revenue from contracts) apply from 
1 April 2018 and IFRS 16 (Leases) will apply from 1 April 2020. We will assess 
the impact of these new standards to determine whether they have been 
appropriately implemented by the Council.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit Committee with 
an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.  

P
age 56



7

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Materiality

Planning
materiality

£2.5m
Performance 

materiality

£1.9m
Audit

differences

£0.127m

Materiality has been set at £2.5m, which represents 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on provision of services. This comprises of 
gross expenditure on the provision of services, interest payable, pension interest costs and commercial properties expenditure. We have 
not changed the basis for calculation of materiality from the previous period.

Performance materiality has been set at £1.9m, which represents 75% of materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income 
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement and 
collection fund) greater than £120k.  Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent 
that they merit the attention of the Audit Committee.

P
age 57



8

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy 

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

 Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2019 
and of the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

 Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

 Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
 Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
 The quality of systems and processes;
 Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
 Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council. 

P
age 58



9

Audit risks02 01

P
age 59



10

Risk assessment

We have obtained an understanding of your strategy, reviewed your principal risks as identified in your 2018 Annual Report and Accounts and combined it with our 
understanding of the sector to identify key risks that impact our audit. 
The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant matters that are relevant for planning our year-end audit: 

Audit risks

Risk assessment

Higher

Lower Higher

Fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
t i

m
pa

ct

Probability of occurrence

3

Significant risks
1 Capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure

Other financial statement risks
2 Valuation of the net pension 
liability
3 Valuation of property

1

2

P
age 60



11

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks

What will we do?

• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in 
place to address those risks.

• Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance 
of management’s processes over fraud.

• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed 
to address the risk of fraud.

Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified 
fraud risks, including:
• Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general 

ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the financial 
statements

• Assessing accounting estimates for evidence of management bias, and
• Evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

In addition to our overall response, we consider where these risk may 
manifest themselves and identify separate fraud risks as necessary below.

What is the risk?

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a 
unique position to perpetrate fraud because of 
its ability to manipulate accounting records 
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent 
financial statements by overriding controls that 
would otherwise appear to be operating 
effectively.   

Misstatements due to fraud or 
error*

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

P
age 61



12

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued) 

What will we do?

In terms of the overall response, we will: 

• Identify fraud risks during the planning stages.
• Inquire of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place 

to address those risks.
• Understand the oversight given by those charged with governance of 

management’s processes over fraud.
• Consider the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address 

the risk of fraud.

We will take a substantive approach to respond to the specific risk, 
undertaking the following procedures related to the incorrect capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure:

• Test a sample of capital expenditure at a lower testing threshold, 
including Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 
(REFCUS), where material, to verify that revenue costs have not been 
inappropriately capitalised;

• As part of our journal testing strategy, we will review unusual journal 
pairings related to capital expenditure posted around the year-end i.e. 
where the debit is to capital expenditure and the credit to income and 
expenditure

What is the risk?

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a 
unique position to perpetrate fraud because 
of its ability to manipulate accounting records 
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent 
financial statements by overriding controls 
that would otherwise appear to be operating 
effectively. In considering how the risk of 
management override may present itself, we 
conclude that this is primarily through 
management taking action to override 
controls and manipulate in year financial 
transactions that impact the medium to 
longer term projected financial position. A 
key way of improving the revenue position is 
through the inappropriate capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure. The Council has a 
significant fixed asset base and a material 
capital programme and therefore has the 
potential to materially impact the revenue 
position through inappropriate capitalisation.

Misstatements due to fraud or 
error – capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure*

Financial statement impact

Misstatements that occur in 
relation to capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure could affect the 
comprehensive income and 
expenditure account and the 
balance sheet by decreasing 
revenue expenditure and 
increasing capital expenditure. 

Amounts reported in the 2017/18 
financial statements were:

Gross Income (cost of services): 
£107.5m

Gross Expenditure (cost of 
services): £114.2m

Capital additions (reported in Note 
13: £34m

P
age 62



13

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Pension Net Liability Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 
require the Council to make extensive disclosures within its 
financial statements regarding its membership of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme administered by 
Hertfordshire County Council.

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated 
balance and the Code requires that this liability be disclosed 
on the Council’s balance sheet. At 31 March 2018, the net 
liability arising totalled £17.4 million.

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report 
issued to the Council by the actuary to the County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation 
and judgement and therefore management engages an 
actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs 
(UK) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on 
the use of management experts and the assumptions 
underlying fair value estimates.

We will:
• Liaise with the auditors of Hertfordshire Pension Fund,  to obtain assurances over the information 

supplied to the actuary in relation to Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council;
• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Hymans Robertson) including the assumptions they 

have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the National 
Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by the 
EY actuarial team; and 

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s financial 
statements in relation to IAS19.

Guaranteed minimum pension equalisation
In the recent Lloyds Bank High Court case, the judge has ruled that all schemes must equalise 
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (‘GMP’) between males and females. 
PwC, as part of their work on reporting on the reasonableness of the assumptions used by actuaries for 
the calculation of the IAS 19 liability, will review how GMP equalisation has been considered and the 
reasonableness of any calculations that have been made. PwC will set out recommendations for work 
by local auditors as part of their findings. 

Officers should be discussing the Council’s member profile to determine whether high level calculations 
are appropriate to their circumstances, and forming their own judgement whether the impact is 
material.

We will obtain an understanding of the actions the Council has taken concerning GMP and the potential 
impact.

We will engage EY specialists as appropriate. 

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 63



14

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of property, including investment properties

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 
represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts and 
are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and 
depreciation charges. Management is required to make 
material judgemental inputs and apply estimation 
techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in 
the balance sheet.

In terms of the overall response, we will: 
• evaluate the selection and application of accounting policies established to determine whether the 
accounting policies are being applied in an inappropriate manner;
• adjust the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures by, for example, increasing our sample 
sizes

We will take a substantive approach to respond to the specific risk, undertaking the following 
procedures related to the valuation of property, including investment properties.

• Consider changes to the property portfolio and arrangements for valuations at the Council to 
determine our audit approach.
• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuers, including the adequacy of the scope of the 
work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;
• Sample testing key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation;
• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within an 
appropriate timescale. 
• Consider any specific changes to assets that have occurred and that these have been 
communicated to the valuer;
• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2018/19 to confirm that the remaining asset base is not 
materially misstated;
• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and
• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

Following our initial audit considerations we will consider engaging EY valuation specialists to assist the 
audit team.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 64



15

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

IFRS 9 financial instruments 

This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts 
from the 2018/19 financial year and will change:

• How financial assets are classified and measured;
• How the impairment of financial assets are calculated; and 
• The disclosure requirements for financial assets.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard; and the 
2018/19 Cipfa Code of practice on local authority accounting provides
guidance on the application of IFRS 9. However, until the Guidance Notes 
are issued and any statutory overrides are confirmed there remains 
some uncertainty on the accounting treatment.

We will:
• Assess the authority’s implementation arrangements that should include an impact 

assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard, transitional 
adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19;

• Consider the classification and valuation of financial instrument assets;
• Review new expected credit loss model impairment calculations for assets; and
• Check additional disclosure requirements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts 
from the 2018/19 financial year. 

The key requirements of the standard cover the identification of 
performance obligations under customer contracts and the linking of 
income to the meeting of those performance obligations.

The 2018/19 Cipfa Code of practice on local authority accounting 
provides guidance on the application of IFRS 15 and includes a useful 
flow diagram and commentary on the main sources of LG revenue and 
how they should be recognised.

The impact on local authority accounting is likely to be limited as large 
revenue streams like council tax, non domestic rates and government 
grants will be outside the scope of IFRS 15. However where that 
standard is relevant, the recognition of revenue will change and new 
disclosure requirements introduced.

We will:
• Assess the authority’s implementation arrangements that should include an impact 

assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard, transitional 
adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19. This will include Local Authority 
Trading Companies consolidated into the Authority’s Group Accounts;

• Consider application to the authority’s revenue streams, and where the standard is 
relevant test to ensure revenue is recognised when (or as) it satisfies a performance 
obligation; and

• Check additional disclosure requirements.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 65



16

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 66



17

Value for Money

Background

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion. 

For 2018/19 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise 
your arrangements to:

 Take informed decisions;
 Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
 Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework 
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required 
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of 
Audit Practice defines as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would 
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on 
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work 
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further 
work.  We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector 
and organisation-specific level.  In 2018/19 this will include consideration of the steps taken by the Council to 
consider the impact of Brexit on its future service provision, medium-term financing and investment values.  
Although the precise impact cannot yet be modelled, we anticipate that Authorities will be carrying out scenario 
planning and that Brexit and its impact will feature on operational risk registers.

Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the issues we have 
identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other 
stakeholders. This has resulted in the identification no significant risks at the planning stage. We will update the 
Audit Committee with any changes to our approach as appropriate. 

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for 
securing value for money  

Informed 
decision making 

Working with 
partners and 
third parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

P
age 67



18

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 68



19

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2018/19 has been set at £2.5m. This
represents 2% of the Council’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services,
other operating expenditure plus financing expenditure. It will be reassessed
throughout the audit process. We have provided supplemental information about audit
materiality in Appendix D.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£127m
Planning

materiality

£2.5m

Performance 
materiality

£1.9m
Audit

differences

£0.127m

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements 
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial 
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of 
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at £1.9m which 
represents 75% of planning materiality. 

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified 
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all 
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet and collection fund that 
have an effect on income or that relate to other comprehensive income.

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and 
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves 
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit 
Committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective. 

Specific materiality – We will set a lower level of materiality for
remuneration disclosures , related party transactions, members’ allowances 
and exit packages which reflects our understanding that an amount less 
than our materiality would influence the economic decisions of users of the 
financial statements in relation to this.

Key definitions

We request that the Audit Committee confirm its understanding of, and agreement to, 
these materiality and reporting levels.

P
age 69



20

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 70



21

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit 

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK). 

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we 
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO [delete if not applicable]

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 71



22

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves: 
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and
• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2018/19 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required 
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated. 

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and 
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for 
improvement, to management and the Audit Committee. 

Internal audit:
We will review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, together with reports from any other work completed 
in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 72



23

Audit team06 01

P
age 73



24

Audit team

Audit team 
Audit team structure:

Andrew Brittain
Associate Partner

Carol Ryan
Senior Manager

Specialist 

EY Valuations 
team

Specialist

EY actuaries

Sheena Phillips
Senior

P
age 74



25

Audit team

Use of specialists
• Our approach to the involvement of specialists, and the use of their work. 

When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the 
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings EY Valuations Team, Welwyn Hatfield Borough internal and external valuers

Pensions disclosure EY Actuaries / Hymans Robertson / PwC

Fair Value Investment Measurement Arlingclose

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and 
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular 
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used; 

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

P
age 75



26

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 76



27

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2018/19.
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit Committee and we will discuss them with the Audit Committee Chair as 
appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable Audit Committee timetable Deliverables

Planning:

Risk assessment and setting of scopes.

December

Interim audit testing

Walkthrough of key systems and 
processes

February 19 March 2019 Audit Planning Report

Year end audit May/June

Audit Completion procedures June/July Date not confirmed Audit Results Report

Audit opinions and completion certificates

Conclusion of reporting July/August Date not confirmed Annual Audit Letter

P
age 77



28

Independence08 01

P
age 78



29

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis 
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we 
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these 
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.
We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to 
provide non-audit services that has been submitted;
We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period, 
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and 
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY) 
including consideration of all relationships between 
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they 
are considered to be effective, including any 
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
► Information about the general policies and process 

within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.
► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply 

more restrictive independence rules than permitted 
under the Ethical Standard [note: additional 
wording should be included in the communication 
reflecting the client specific situation]

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person, 
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit 
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to 
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties 
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these 
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address 
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to 
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any 

non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;
► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;
► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit 

services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy; 
► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms; 

and
► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction

P
age 79



30

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats, 
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only 
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services; 
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees. 
We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.  
None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with 
your policy on pre-approval. The ratio of non audit fees to audits fees is not permitted to exceed 70%.
At the time of writing, the current ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees is 8%. No additional safeguards are required. 
A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We 
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance 
with Ethical Standard part 4.
There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent 
and the objectivity and independence of Andrew Brittain, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

P
age 80



31

Independence

EY Transparency Report 2018

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence 
and integrity are maintained. 
Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm 
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2018 and can be found here: 
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018

Other communications

P
age 81



32

Appendices09 01

P
age 82



33

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee 
2018/19

Scale fee
2018/19

Final Fee
2017/18

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 47,921 47,921 64,758
Non-audit services - Housing
Benefits 7,005 (Note 2) Note 2 Note 1

Non-audit services – Pooling of 
housing capital receipts return n/a n/a 4,000 (Note 3)

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published the fee scale for the audit of the 2018/19 accounts of opted-in principal local government and police bodies. 

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements 
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

All fees exclude VAT

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being 
unqualified;

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

► The Council has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a 
variation to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in 
advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public 
and formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

Note 1 – the scale fee for the housing benefits work for 2017/18 is £7,914. Due 
to additional input required to complete this work, we will be seeking a scale fee 
variation and therefore have not yet determined the final fee. Any fee variation 
will need to be approved by PSAA.

Note 2 - 2018/19 and beyond

From 2018/19, the Council is responsible for appointing their own reporting 
accountant to undertake the work on their claims in accordance with the 
instructions determined by the relevant grant paying body. As your appointed 
auditor for the financial statements audit, we are pleased that for 2018/19 the 
Council has appointed us to act as reporting accountants in relation to the 
housing subsidy claim. The baseline certification is set out above. The fee is 
based on a number of assumptions as set out in the engagement letter.

Note 3 – Note 3 – the engagement for Pooling of housing capital receipts for 
2017/18 are nearing completion. We will inform you should the final fees differ 
from that reported in the table above. 

P
age 83



34

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Audit Committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in 
the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. 

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit 
approach 

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

Audit Plan - March Audit Committee 

Significant findings from 
the audit 

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Audit Committee.

P
age 84



35

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by 
law or regulation 

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected 
• Corrected misstatements that are significant
• Material misstatements corrected by management 

Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

Fraud • Enquiries of the Audit Committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any 
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties 
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 
• Disagreement over disclosures 
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity 

Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 

and independence

Audit Plan - March Audit Committee 
Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

P
age 85



36

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

Consideration of laws and 
regulations 

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and 
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation 
on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Audit Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the 
Audit Committee  may be aware of

Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

Group audits • An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the 
components

• An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the work to 
be performed by the component auditors on the financial information of significant 
components

• Instances where the group audit team’s evaluation of the work of a component auditor 
gave rise to a concern about the quality of that auditor’s work

• Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement team’s 
access to information may have been restricted

• Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management, 
employees who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the fraud 
resulted in a material misstatement of the group financial statements

Audit Plan - March Audit Committee 
Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

P
age 86



37

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

Material inconsistencies 
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work 

Audit Plan - March Audit Committee 
Audit Results Report – June Audit Committee

Certification work Summary of certification work undertaken Certification report – March Audit Committee

P
age 87



38

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  
required by auditing 
standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group and Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting. 
• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 

statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to 

express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial statements, the Audit
Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee and reporting whether it is materially 
inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and 
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Purpose and evaluation of materiality 

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, 
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial 
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the 
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements. 

Materiality determines:
• The locations at which we conduct audit procedures to support the opinion given on the Group financial statements; and
• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the 
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could 
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

P
age 88



Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council
Certification of claims and 
returns annual report 
2017-18

27 February 2019

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 12



2

Contents

In April 2015 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the via the PSAA website (www.PSAA.co.uk).
The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited 
bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment (updated February 2017)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code 
of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit Committee and management of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we 
might state to the Audit Committee, and management of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit Committee, and management of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council for this report or for the opinions we have 
formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Housing benefits 
subsidy claim01 Other assurance 

work02

Looking forward04 Summary of 
recommendations05

2017-18 
certification fees03

V
F
M

P
age 90

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


3

Housing benefits subsidy claim01 01

P
age 91



4

Housing benefits subsidy claim

Local Government administers the Government’s housing benefits scheme for tenants and can claim subsidies from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) 
towards the cost of benefits paid.
The certification guidance requires reporting accountants to complete more extensive ‘40+’ or extended testing if initial testing identifies errors in the calculation of 
benefit or compilation of the claim. 40+ testing may also be carried out as a result of errors that have been identified in the certification of previous years claims. 
We found errors and carried out extended testing in several areas. 
Extended and other testing identified errors which the Council amended. They had a small net impact on the claim. We have reported underpayments, uncertainties 
and the extrapolated value of other errors in a qualification letter. The DWP then decides whether to ask the Council to carry our further work to quantify the error 
or to claw back the benefit subsidy paid. The main issues we reported include:
► rent figure not supported;
► incorrect working tax credit and child tax credit figures being used in the assessment of benefit; 
► Misclassification of overpayments; and
► income being incorrectly assessed.

Scope of work Results

Value of claim presented for certification £37,937,789

Amended/Not amended Amended – subsidy reduced by £1,214

Qualification letter Yes

Fee – 2017-18

Fee – 2016-17

£12,229*

£13,328

Note 1 - The indicative certification fee for the Council for 2017-18 was £7,914. However, we are proposing a variation to the fee of £4,315 based on increased work being 
required on the Housing Benefit Subsidy return. We are currently in the process of agreeing this additional cost with Public Sector Audit Appointments

P
age 92



5

Other assurance work02 01

P
age 93



6

Other assurance work

During 2017-18 we also acted as reporting accountants in relation to the following schemes:
► Pooling of housing capital receipts 
This work is ongoing and we will provide a separate report for the pooling of housing capital receipts return. This work has been undertaken outside the PSAA 
regime. The fees for this are included in the figures in Section 3. They are referred to here to ensure to ensure Members have a full understanding of the various 
returns on which we provide assurance. 

P
age 94



7

2017-18 certification fees03 01V
F
M

P
age 95



8

The PSAA determine a scale fee each year for the certification of the housing benefits subsidy claim. For 2017-18, these scale fees were published by the Public 
Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA’s) and are available on their website (www.psaa.co.uk).

Note 1 - The indicative certification fee for the Council for 2017-18 was £7,914. However, we are proposing a variation to the fee of £4,315 based on increased 
work being required on the Housing Benefit Subsidy return. We are currently in the process of agreeing this additional cost with Public Sector Audit Appointments.

Note 2 - the work to complete the housing capital receipts return is being completed. We will inform you if the final fee differs from that reported here. 

2017-18 certification feesV
F
M

Claim or return 2017-18 2017-18 2016-17

Actual fee
£

Indicative fee
£

Actual fee
£

Housing benefits subsidy claim 12,229 – Note 1 7,914 13,238

Pooling of housing capital receipts return 4,000 – Note 2 n/a 4,000

P
age 96



9

Looking forward04 01

P
age 97



10

Looking forward

From 2018/19, the Council is responsible for appointing their own reporting accountant to undertake the work on their claims in accordance with the instructions 
determined by the relevant grant paying body. 
As your appointed auditor for the financial statements audit, we are pleased that the Council has appointed us to act as reporting accountants in relation to the 
housing subsidy scheme.
We welcome this opportunity to continue undertaking this work for the Council providing a seamless quality service, drawing on vast array of experienced and 
knowledgeable public sector professionals in these areas, whilst realising the synergies and efficiencies that are achieved by undertaking both the audit and grant 
work.

P
age 98



11

Summary of recommendations05 01

P
age 99



12

Summary of recommendations

This section highlights the recommendations from our work and the actions agreed.

Recommendation Priority Agreed action and comment Deadline Responsible officer

Housing benefits subsidy 
claim

An increased number of 
errors were reported in the 
Qualification Letter in 
2017/18. The Council should 
undertake an exercise to 
identify the causes of the 
increased number of errors 
and any corrective action 
that it may need to take to 
reduce this in 2018/19 and 
future years.

Medium An analysis has been undertaken regarding the errors on the 2017/18 subsidy claim.   This 
work took place during the audit and the benefit manager has been approached about 
ensuring this is happening throughout the year.

·        Following the errors identified staff training was undertaken to pick up on the areas of 
concern.  This is in addition to regular staff training which already takes place.  Extensive cell 
checks are being undertaken for 2018/19 to reduce the risk of incorrect assessments or where 
subsidy has not been recorded correctly and instructions have been issued to officers in cases 
where discrepancies have been found.

·        Sample quality checks between 4% and 10% are regularly undertaken by the benefit 
performance officer on assessments processed by the team. This allows corrections to be 
made to individual cases and is used to identify training needs for the team which are then 
addressed. There are also 10% audit checks carried out as part of the management of the 
benefit service which identifies errors which are brought to the attention of a senior officer in 
the benefit team to raise with staff and to use to formulate training plans.

·        Targeted checks relating to aspects reported in the 2017/18 qualification letter have 
been undertaken by the benefit manager. Amongst other things, these checks include the 
recording of Tax Credits updates and accurately recording eligible rent levels.  This was one of 
the areas of concern raised and instructions have been shared with staff in team meetings on 
how to deal with this area of work. Specific targeted checks have also been done to check the 
classification of overpayments and staff have been instructed how the system fields relating to 
notification changes should be input to ensure the correct classifications of overpayments.  
This is being monitored by senior officers in the benefit team.

30 April 2019 Neil Wright, Benefits 
Manager, Sopra Steria

Farhad Cantel, Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough Council

P
age 100



13

Summary of recommendations

This section highlights the recommendations from our work and the actions agreed.

Recommendation Priority Agreed action and comment Deadline Responsible officer

Housing benefits subsidy claim

The Council’s housing benefits provider 
completes workbooks to support our testing 
which are then reviewed for completeness, 
accuracy and quality by the audit team. In 
2017/18, a significant number of issues were 
identified in our review of the workbooks 
which required remediation by the audit team. 
In some instances, this led to additional testing 
where the conclusions reached by the Council 
on individual cases were found to be incorrect 
by the audit team. This has led to significant 
additional input by the audit team and an 
additional fee. The Council should consider 
what actions it should take to improve the 
completeness, accuracy and quality of the 
workbooks submitted for audit. 

Medium Advice was needed from the Audit team as to how some cases should 
be represented on the workbooks as this was not made clear when 
the work initially commenced.   However, for 2017/18 some of the 
cases were harder than normal to reconcile which was recognised by 
the audit team and this resulted in additional time required to meet 
the necessary deadlines and complete the workbooks.    The lessons 
learnt with the 2017/18 audit will assist in formulating the workbooks 
for 2018/19 and enhanced final checks will be made on the 2018/19 
workbooks prior to being issued.    These checks will help eliminate 
issues relating to rounding, reconciliation and how to represent 
unusual adjustments such as where adjustments are made to 
previous year subsidy.

30 April 2019 Neil Wright, Benefits 
Manager, Sopra Steria

Farhad Cantel, Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough Council

P
age 101



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory 
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build 
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the 
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver 
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a 
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for 
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or 
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each 
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a 
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to 
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit 
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not 
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer 
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 102


	Agenda
	4 ACTIONS UPDATE
	8 RISK MANAGEMENT
	8a - Appendix A Strategic Risks Feb 2019
	8b - Appendix B - Top Operational Risks Feb 2019

	9 SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE (SIAS) INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
	10 SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE (SIAS) 2019/20 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN REPORT
	11 AUDIT PLANNING REPORT - YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
	Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council�Audit planning report 
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy
	Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy
	Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy
	Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy 
	Slide Number 9
	Audit risks
	Audit risks
	Audit risks
	Audit risks
	Audit risks
	Audit risks
	Slide Number 16
	Value for Money
	Slide Number 18
	Audit materiality
	Slide Number 20
	Scope of our audit
	Scope of our audit
	Slide Number 23
	Audit team
	Audit team
	Slide Number 26
	Audit timeline
	Slide Number 28
	Independence
	Independence
	Independence
	Slide Number 32
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix B
	Appendix B
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	12 CERTIFICATION  OF  CLAIMS  AND  RETURNS  ANNUAL  REPORT  2017-18
	Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council�Certification of claims and returns annual report �2017-18
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Housing benefits subsidy claim
	Slide Number 5
	Other assurance work
	Slide Number 7
	2017-18 certification fees
	Slide Number 9
	Looking forward
	Slide Number 11
	Summary of recommendations
	Summary of recommendations
	Slide Number 14


